
Kalamazoo Lake Harbor Authority 
Douglas & Saugatuck, Michigan 

 
AGENDA 

                                        Tuesday, May 18, 2021 – 7:00 p.m. 
                                                        Remote Meeting 
 
1. Call to Order: By Chair 
 
2. Roll Call:  
 
3. Approval of Agenda: 
 A. May 18, 2021 

Motion to approve the May 18, 2021 meeting agenda as (presented/amended) –       
Roll call vote 
 

4. Approval of Minutes: 
 A. April 20, 2021 meeting minutes 
 Motion to approve the April 20, 2021 meeting minutes as (presented/amended) –     

Roll call vote 
 
5. Approval of Invoices:  
 
6. Public Communications:  
 A. Written         
 B. Verbal (Limit of three (3) minutes) 
 
7. Unfinished Business:  
 A. Township Resolution of Intent to Join KLHA…………………………………………… Update 
 B. Role of KLHA…………………………………………………………………………………………… Discussion 
 C. Recording Duties, Meeting Location and Rotation………………………………….. Discussion 
 D. Aquatic Weed Treatment……………………………………………………………………….. Update   
 E. Buoys……………………………………………………………………..…………………………….….Update 
 F. Blue Star Bridge Naming…………………………………………………………………………..Update 
 
8. New Business: 
 A. Lake Levels Report……………………………………………………………………………………Informational 
 
9. Reports: 
 A. Committee Reports 

i. Harbor Safety Sub-Committee – VanLoon 
a. Navigational Lights Update 

ii. Douglas Harbor Authority – LaBombard 
 B. Staff Reports 

i. LaBombard 
ii. Heise 

iii. Frey 
 

10. Public Communications: (Limit of three (3) minutes) 
11. Authority Member Comments: 
12. Adjournment:    Motion to adjourn 

To attend and participate in 
this remote meeting of the 
Douglas Harbor Authority, 
please consider joining online 
or by phone. 

 

Join online by visiting: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/
83617673462 

Join by phone by dialing: 

+1 (312) 626-6799 

Then enter 

“Meeting ID”: 

836 1767 3462 

Those who are hearing impaired 
and require additional 

accommodations are encouraged 
to contact (269) 857-1451 or 

info@ci.douglas.mi.us as soon as 
possible 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83617673462
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83617673462
mailto:info@ci.douglas.mi.us


Kalamazoo Lake Harbor Authority 
Douglas & Saugatuck, Michigan 

April 20, 2021 @ 7:00 PM 
Remote Meeting 
MINUTES - DRAFT 

 
 
1. Call to Order: By VanLoon at 7:10 PM 

 
2. Roll Call: Present –VanLoon, North, Naumann, Klungle 

Absent – Trester 
Also Present – Douglas City Manager LaBombard, Executive Assistant Pearson,    
Deputy Clerk Howell 
 

3. Approval of Agenda: 
A. April 20, 2021 – VanLoon requested adding to 7C Meeting Location and Rotation, and 
adding 7F, Blue Star Bridge Naming. 
Motion by Naumann, with support from North, to approve the April 20, 2021 meeting agenda as 
amended. Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

  
4. Approval of Minutes: 
 A. March 16, 2021 meeting minutes 
 Motion by North, with support from Naumann, to approve the March 16, 2021 meeting minutes 

as presented. Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
5. Approval of Invoices: No Invoices. 
    
6. Public Communications:  

A. Written: None.    
 B. Verbal (Limit of three (3) minutes): None. 
 
7. Unfinished Business: 

A.  Township Resolution of Intent to Join KLHA: The City of Douglas took action to authorize 
the resolution for Saugatuck Township to join KLHA.  We’re now waiting for Saugatuck 
City to make a similar resolution. 

 
B. Role of KLHA: Members present would like to table this discussion until all municipalities 

have members represented in the KLHA. 
 
C. Recording Duties, Meeting Location, and Rotation: Members present would like to table 

this discussion until all municipalities have members represented in the KLHA. 
 
D. Aquatic Weed Treatment: The City of Douglas has received authorized signatures from 

everybody that touches the waterfront in the Douglas Harbor area.  The City will send 
out notices to everyone that is within a 300-foot radius of the waterfront for the 
treatments which are June and late July, early August. 

 
E. Buoys: The City of Douglas DPW will clean the buoys, put new stickers on them, and 

they also purchased 4 – 5 new ones.  They will all be installed around Mother’s Day. 
 
F. Blue Star Bridge Naming: Members agreed to keep this item in Unfinished Business for 

the next couple of meetings. 
 



8. New Business:  
EGLE – Kalamazoo River Draft Restoration Plan and Environmental Assessment:  It’s felt 
that it is worthwhile and needs to be done, but it doesn’t affect our end of the river that 
much right now.  The City of Douglas put a link on their website to access the plan.  
There is a public comment period between April 12 and May 14, and a public meeting 
on April 29 at 6:00 p.m. 

 
9. Public Comments: None. 
 
10. Reports: 
 A. Committee Reports 

i. Harbor Safety Sub-Committee 
a. VanLoon:  Has left messages with the Coast Guard to find out whether 
navigational lighting on the Blue Star Bridge is needed and, also, whether their 
approval is needed for decorative lighting. Hasn’t received an answer yet from 
the Coast Guard but will keep trying. 

ii. Douglas Harbor Authority – LaBombard:  The DHA decided that the City take on 
management of the marina this year as a learning opportunity in order to get a 
proper bid put together to outsource the management long-term. 

 The new concrete apron at the top of the launch ramp at Schultz Park has been 
well received by the public. 

 There was discussion regarding the removal and replacement of dead trees 
along the west side of the drive at Schultz Park. 

 The DPW is waiting for parts for the new rowing dock at Wades Bayou before it 
can be installed in the water.  It was suggested having a community event 
celebrating the waterfront area. 

 The rezoning of Point Pleasant from C2 to R3 to make it into a park was 
discussed. 

 The DPW will be installing a new dock at Union Street boat launch, which will be 
removable for the winter. 

 A discussion took place regarding transferring the waterfront parks oversite 
duties to the DHA.   

 
 B. Staff Reports 

i. LaBombard – The I-196 bridge is undergoing construction, with work platforms 
on the underside of the bridge, so boaters need to be aware of the work going 
on. The City will have a conversation with the sheriff’s patrol regarding proper 
buoy marking for navigating under the bridge. 

ii. Heise – Not present 
iii. Frey – Not present 

   
11. Authority Member Comments: North questioned what the Point Pleasant management will 

entail for this year.  The response was that Executive Assistant Pearson will remain the point 
person and Council member Jerry Donovan has agreed to assist in some of the off hours as a 
volunteer.   

 
12. Adjournment: Motion by Klungle, with support from North, to adjourn (7:50 PM).  

Motion carried by voice vote. 
 



April 2021 Update on Kalamazoo Lake Levels- Past, Present and Future 

Bob Shuchman and Karl Bosse 

April 2021 

Introduction:  This is an update to the January 2021 report of high water levels in the Saugatuck and 
Douglas harbor area. Saugatuck and Douglas have continued to experience above-normal Kalamazoo 
Lake and River water levels through April 2021. However, the typical seasonal decline combined with a 
dry winter and early spring have led to current water levels being down more than a foot from April 2020 
(~14 inches). Note that the present water level (approximately 580.5 ft. msl) is still significantly higher 
(approximately 22 inches) than the long term mean April elevation of Lake Michigan (approximately 
578.74 ft. msl). The lake level forecast provided by the US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) indicates 
that the water level over the next 6 months will likely rise slightly due to spring snowmelt and 
precipitation but remain below the record highs of last summer. Many stakeholders are again asking what 
is going on and will the Lake level significantly go down? We will try to address these questions with this 
discussion, but note the predictions on future lake level are educated guesses by NOAA and USACE 
scientists and engineers based on modeling Mother Nature. 

First point to reemphasize: Kalamazoo Lake and Lake Michigan are hydrostatically connected! This 
means that as Lake Michigan rises, so does the Kalamazoo Lake and River. Kalamazoo Lake is what is 
referred to as a drowned river mouth.  

 
Figure 1: Historical Lake Michigan water levels 

Historical Lake Levels: Let’s again look at the updated historical Lake Michigan water levels going 
back to the year 1918 (Figure 1). As discussed previously in the January 2021 report Lakes Michigan and 
Huron are also hydrostatically connected by the Straits of Mackinac. The time history in Figure 1 shows 
at least six periods of high water and five low water level events, with a near record low occurring in 
2013 (remember all the dredging concerns). Some modelers see a periodicity in high to low water levels 
of eight to fifteen years, but suffice to say the water level goes up and it goes down at least each decade. If 
we examine the length of high water events during the entire record we observe high water events as short 
as one year and as long as approximately eight years. The average duration of high water events is 
approximately four years. We are presently six years into this high water event and the plot shows we are 
trending downward. Good news. 

 

 

 

 



 

Figure 2 shows in more detail the mean monthly water levels from 2020 and the start of 2021 relative to 
the historic maximum, minimum, and mean water levels. After water levels reached a record high in July-
August 2020 (~582.4 ft. msl, 7.3 inches higher than the previous maximum), the water has steadily 
declined to a present value of approximately 580.5 ft. msl. This is down approximately 23 inches from the 
record highs of last summer, and 14 inches from the mean April 2020 levels, but still approximately 22 
inches higher than the long term April mean 

 
Figure 2: Mean Daily Lake Michigan water levels for 2020 and the first four months  of 2021 compared to the historic mean 
(pink dots), minimum and maximum (horizontal black bars). 

The top of the seawall at East Shore Harbor Condos (ESHC) is at approximately 582 ft. msl, thus any 
Lake Michigan water level above 582 ft results in flooding. The 582 ft. msl is representative of the height 
of other seawalls in the areas, thus if there is flooding at ESHC flooding will be occurring in other parts of 
the harbor. The mean daily water level for Lake Michigan exceeded 582 ft every day from May 20, 2020 
through early September. After that point, the average monthly water level has not exceeded 581.5 ft. msl, 
thus no flooding. The Lake Michigan water level gauge at Holland can be easily accessed (see 
https://tidesandcurrents.noaa.gov/waterlevels.html?id=9087031) to ascertain whether flooding of the 
shore is occurring. Just remember ~582 ft. msl or lower equals no flooding. 

Present Lake Level and Near Term Trends:   

Presently Lake Michigan and thus Kalamazoo Lake are at 580.5 ft. msl which is approximately 42 inches 
above the low water datum (LWD) value. Water level is down approximately 14 inches from the mean 
April level (which was a record high for April) and 23 inches from the record high set in July 2020. 
However, the water level today is still approximately 22 inches higher than the long term average. The 
water level will rise again as spring continues due to river runoff and snow melt and peak in the July time 
frame. 

 

https://tidesandcurrents.noaa.gov/waterlevels.html?id=9087031


Future Lake Levels: 

The US Army Corps of Engineers, NOAA, and various 
Canadian government organizations all monitor the 
water level in the Great Lakes and make predictions as 
to future water levels. Some predictions look a few 
months into the future while others predict next year or 
five and ten years out. For this discussion we are 
presenting the USACE Great Lakes Water Level 
Outlook for a 12 month period starting from April 2021. 
Recall, three factors determine lake level; precipitation, 
evaporation, and runoff which is referred to as the Net 
Basin Supply (NBS).  

Dry conditions from January-March 2021 led to a 
very low three month NBS. Figure 3 shows 
projected water levels based on a range of scenarios. The purple envelope represents the range of likely 
water levels based on 10 years that also experienced low January-March NBS similar to 2021. In this 
range of scenarios, the peak water level over the next year will be in July 2021 and still be 9 inches below 
the 582 ft msl flooding threshold. The much wider gray area represents the range of possible modeling 
scenarios based on historical data from 1900 to 2020.  

The two solid lines represent water level projections if NBS and hydrologic conditions (i.e. air 
temperature, winds, precipitation) are similar to those observed in two other low January-March NBS 
years. The blue curve represents 1987-88 which, in addition to the low early season NBS, had below 
average ice cover across the Great Lakes (27%). This scenario would entail dry conditions continue 
through most of the year and result in little water level rise through summer 2021 and an April 2022 level 
approximately 15 inches below current levels. The green curve represents 2015-16 where the low March-
June NBS was followed by a wetter than average late spring and early summer. In this scenario, the 2021 
water levels would peak in July approximately 8 inches above current levels, with April 2022 levels 
within an inch of current levels. 

The orange envelope represents a 6-month forecast range based on currently projected weather 
conditions, with the dashed orange line being the most probable forecast. This forecast would put the next 
six months close to the green (2015-16) curve, representing a seasonal water level rise, but one that 
should not result in much flooding. 

  

Figure 3: Prediction of Lake Level for Lake Michigan 



Summary:  The high water levels of 2020 created problems and large expenses for the harbor 
stakeholders. The big question that we do not have a reliable answer for is, when if ever will the water 
return to normal (i.e. is near average value). It really is mostly about the precipitation and evaporation. 
The average annual precipitation in the Michigan watershed basin is approximately 32 inches, with a high 
value of 40 inches occurring in 1985 and a low of 21.6 inches in the year 2016.  Last year (2020) the 
annual precipitation in the Saugatuck area was 39.2 inches, near the high. However, despite the 2020 La 
Niña event, we had a dry winter, resulting in the continued reduction in water levels. The takeaways are: 

1) Kalamazoo Lake and Lake Michigan are hydrostatically connected, if Lake Michigan 
rises so does Kalamazoo Lake and River. 

2) Remember the number 582 ft. msl. When the gauge at Holland reads 582 or higher we 
are going to get flooding. 

3) Storm surge and seiche events on Lake Michigan will still occur and result in local 
flooding due to the high water, in normal times we barely notice these occurrences. 

4) The future lake level is all about NBS, really it translates into rain and snow fall. Above 
average precipitation in the Great Lakes Basin spells trouble.  







 
 

 


	5.18.21 Agenda
	4.20.21 KLHA Minutes
	Lake_Levels_Apr2021



